Public Document Pack

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee

- POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND
AND
REVIEW PANEL 1

Date & Time

-

THURSDAY, 30TH AUGUST, 2007 AT 10.00
AM

Venue

-

COUNCIL CHAMBER, KING'S HOUSE, KING
STREET, THETFORD

Note: The Chairman and Members of the Council’s Development Control Committee are cordially
invited to attend for joint consideration with the PDRP1 for Local Development Framework Agenda
items 6, 7 and 8.
Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific questions, are asked to
raise these with the appropriate officer at least two working days before the meeting. If the
information requested is available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.
Panel 1 Members:
Mr J.D. Rogers (Chairman)
Mr S.H. Chapman-Allen
Mr R.P. Childerhouse
Mr P.J. Duigan
Mr A.P. Joel (Vice-Chairman)

Mr K. Martin
Mr I.A.C. Monson
Mrs P. Quadling
Mrs P.A. Spencer
Mrs L.S. Turner
PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING
ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE
TELEPHONES

Committee Services
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Monday, 20 August 2007

Please ask for Elaine Wilkes: Telephone (01362) 656354
e-mail: elaine.wilkes@breckland.gov.uk

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
30 August 2007

PART A
ITEMS
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Page(s)
herewith

1.

1 - 11

MINUTES
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2007.

2.

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act,
1972.

4.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may
have in any of the following items on the agenda. The Members' Code of
Conduct requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and
whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest.

5.

NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.

6.

THETFORD GROWTH POINT STATUS
Presentation by Nick Vass Bowen and Natalie Beal the Thetford Growth
Point Team.

7.

NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL: A47 TO A1067 LINK IMPROVEMENT
CONSULTATION
Report of the Operations Manager – Environment.
A copy of the County Council’s public consultation paper is enclosed as a
separate document for members of the Panel. The information can also be
accessed online at http://www.norfolk.gov.uk/A47toA1067link

8.

WORK PROGRAMME
Members are invited to consider any additional items or topics for inclusion
on the future work programme.
Items currently listed in the Panel’s programme were confirmed as:
o
o
o

LDF and associated issues (ongoing)
New Planning Regulations – when developed
Regional Framework – interrelation with LDF and compatibility of
policies
2

12 - 14

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
30 August 2007
30th August 2007
o

Update on progress of Thetford Growth Point project in relation to
development of the LDF. Representatives of Thetford Town
Council and Norfolk County Council (as members of Moving
Thetford Forward and associated Member Groups) are invited to
attend for discussions.

18th September 2007
o

9.

Snetterton Electricity Supply project (part of REV project) – Update
on progress requested.

NEXT MEETING
To note the date of the next meeting to be held on Tuesday, 18 September
2007 at 10.00 a.m. in the Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House,
Dereham.

3

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
30 August 2007

PROTOCOL
The Working Style of the Policy Development & Review Panels
This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted
by the Policy Development & Review Panels (PD&RP) overseeing the Panel’s mode of operation.
Member Leadership
Members of the Panel will undertake scrutiny topics as directed by the Overview & Scrutiny
Commission (O&SC) and will recognise that best practice identifies scrutiny as a Member-led activity.
The Panel will expect Cabinet members, to take responsibility for answering their questions about
topics which primarily relate to the Council’s activities.
A Constructive Atmosphere
Meetings of the Panel will be constructive and not judgmental. Panel recognises and accepts that
effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People giving
evidence at Panel should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack.
Independence
Members of the PD&RP will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party groups.
Respect and Trust
Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust.
Consensus
Members of the Panel will work together and, while recognising political allegiances, will attempt to
achieve consensus and agreed recommendations. There will be recognition that the Panel has a
primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community.
Openness and Transparency
The PD&RP’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Panel’s meetings will explain the discussion and debate
so that they can be understood by an outside reader.
Impartial and Independent Officer Advice
Officers who advise and support the Panel will give impartial and independent advice, as officers
support all members of the Council.
Regular Review
There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it
is not working effectively.
Programming and Planning
The Panel will have a programme of work assigned by the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. The
Panel will be able to suggest additional topics for review through the O&SC for approval in the work
programme. Before each topic is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to
see.
Managing Time
The Panel will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of
business will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses.
Where possible, members should give advance notice of specific questions being provided at the time
of the meeting to save items being deferred.

4

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

Agenda Item 1

At a Meeting of the
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL 1
Held on Tuesday, 24 July 2007 at 10.00 am in
Regency Room, The Assembly Rooms, Market Place, Swaffham
PRESENT
Mr J.D. Rogers (Chairman)
Mr A.P. Joel (Vice-Chairman)
Mr K. Martin

Mrs P. Quadling
Mrs P.A. Spencer
Mrs L.S. Turner

Also Present
Mrs D.K.R. Irving

Mrs A.L. Steward

In Attendance
Mark Broughton
Paul Harris
Andrea Long
Stephen McGrath
David Spencer
Elaine Wilkes

-

Scrutiny Officer
Planning Policy Officer
Environmental Planning Manager
Principal Committee Officer
Senior Planning Policy Officer
Senior Committee Officer
Action By

39/07 MINUTES
Minute 34/07 was corrected by the addition of Mr A.P. Joel’s name
to the list of apologies for absence.
With regard to Minute 37/07, the Chairman corrected this item to
clarify that all the addresses concerned were in the parish of
Carbrooke but with the exception of one, all were classified as
Watton for postal purposes. It also gave rise to children being
sent to Watton schools instead of to the local school in Carbrooke.
Subject to the above corrections, the minutes of the meeting held
on 22 May 2007 were confirmed and signed by the Chairman.
40/07 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Mr R.P. Childerhouse
and Mr P.J. Duigan.
41/07 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
The Chairman declared the following interests:
§

Agenda Item 6 – Personal interest by virtue of the fact that
he was in the process of submitting an application site for
inclusion in the Breckland Local Development Framework
but, as no site specifics decisions were being considered
under this item, there was no prejudicial interest at this
stage and he would remain in the meeting.
1

1

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

§

Agenda item 7 – Personal interest by virtue of his position
as Vice-Chairman of the County Council’s Planning
Regulatory Committee governing waste and minerals.

42/07 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING
The following Members were in attendance:
§
§

Mrs A. Steward – Executive Member for Housing and
Planning.
Mrs D. Irving

43/07 BRECKLAND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE ON RECENT BEST
PRACTICE AND ADVICE (AGENDA ITEM 6)
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report, which
informed Members of progress on the Breckland Local
Development Framework (LDF) and the latest best practice and
advice on how to prepare the LDF and the new spatial planning
agenda. Additionally, the report assessed Breckland’s progress
on its LDF in relation to surrounding authorities. The report also
re-affirmed the key tests to which every LDF, including
Breckland’s, would be subject through the independent
Examination process and drew out examples from those
authorities who had so far failed to deliver a sound LDF.
The fact that guidance accompanying the 2004 Planning Act was
continuing to evolve had impinged on progress of the LDF and
there was a requirement to incorporate spatial planning within the
LDF. This was a new element, moving away from the solely landuse planning approach which had previously underpinned the
Local Plan system. In essence, spatial planning involved:
§
§
§
§

Integrating policies for the development and use of land
with other policies and programmes
Having a vision based on sound evidence, local
distinctiveness and community objectives
Recognising the LDF is not exclusively a technical
planning document but the local authority’s central delivery
document, alongside the Sustainable Community Strategy
Having aspirations for communities but also having a
realistic and clear delivery framework

Breckland’s spatial planning would be informed by the Regional
Spatial Strategy (RSS), the adoption of which would be delayed
until autumn 2007 at the earliest to allow further time for impact
assessments on European Habitats in the Region (a process
known as Appropriate Assessment). This work would be critical to
the Breckland context given the proximity of European Habitats to
Thetford and that Breckland would need the clarity of the Regional
Appropriate Assessment to advance its own LDF.
It was explained that, although the authority was in the third year
of the new system and it was appreciated that there was some
anxiety over the time being taken to produce the LDF,
2

2

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

nevertheless Breckland was making reasonable progress in the
local context and there were a number of factors which had
influenced the position and needed to be taken into account.
These included:
§

Delays to the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS), as
mentioned above.

§

Evolving Government guidance since the introduction of
the Regulations to the new 2004 Planning Act resulting in a
shift of emphasis towards the development of more
detailed and site specific Core Strategies within the LDF,
where previously the advice proposed a more strategic and
visionary approach to the LDF, where much of the detail
would have been delegated to into site specific documents,
area action plans and other supplementary documents.

§

Developing and maintaining an up-to-date evidence base
to meet new requirements. Breckland had made
considerable progress in producing the required evidence
base but there was a need now to update parts of that to
meet the latest Government guidance (i.e. Appropriate
Assessment). The volume of work necessary to satisfy the
Appropriate Assessment was considerable and various
research projects were under way involving the RSPB and
Forestry Commission.

§

The LDF would become a key delivery mechanism for the
Sustainable Community Strategy. The Breckland Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) had committed to the refresh
of the existing Community Strategy into a Sustainable
Community Strategy by early 2008. The preparation of
both the LDF and the Sustainable Community Strategy
needed to be closely aligned and to share a joint evidence
base on the characteristics of the area. A temporary
Research Officer post was therefore to be appointed for a
three-month contract over the summer to refine and update
existing evidence collated to date.

§

Staff turnover and resource was a critical element. The
core team delivering the LDF consisted of two full-time
officers, supported by the Environmental Planning Officer.
Two planning policy officers had left the team over the last
five months due to promotion, which reflected the current
competitive market for planners. Recruitment and
retention of planners was therefore an issue of risk to
delivering the LDF.

These key factors were reflected in the timetable for the
preparation of the LDF, as set out in the report.
Latest best practice and advice resulting from earlier LDF
submissions by other authorities around the country showed that:

3

3

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

§

Evidence needed to be submitted with the document, not
hastily prepared as an afterthought once the document had
been written.

§

Core strategies needed to add a local dimension to
regional or national guidance and policy.

§

Spatial planning needed to be included; delivery was as
critical as the use of land.

§

Core Strategies should pinpoint specific sites rather than
suggest general aspirations.

§

Self-assessment should be a continual part of the process,
not an add-on at the end.

Breckland was addressing the lessons learnt by other authorities.
The report also outlined the responses received to the LDF
Development Choices consultation. In summary, the consultation
was successful in providing additional detail on choices around the
development strategy and the responses would enable the
production of a more responsive and deliverable LDF.
The consultation revealed that the strategy options and level of
development earmarked for the towns was on the right lines and
deliverable. There was a need to look more closely at
Attleborough and its transport issues and the presence of
European habitats close to Thetford. There was widespread
agreement that the LDF needed to look beyond 2021 to 2026 to
ensure housing was delivered and there was long-term certainty
about where development will occur. Options regarding reducing
the density of developments in the villages to as low as 22 homes
per hectare (9 per acre) and increasing parking in residential
areas to reflect local circumstances also received significant
endorsement.
Further work and more evidence was clearly needed around which
villages should be identified as ‘Local Service Centres’ and how
the LDF was going to address concerns about rural housing
needs. A number of alternative Local Service Centre villages
have been suggested (i.e. Bawdeswell, Shropham, Litcham) and
this was balanced by comments in support of protecting the rural
areas and limiting new development. In conclusion, the
consultation did not reveal any major showstoppers at this stage
which would prevent the delivery of a development strategy in
broad alignment with that which was consulted on.
The following were the ‘tests of soundness’ that would be
examined by the Planning Inspectorate against the Core Strategy
and Development Control Policies document when it was
submitted to the Secretary of State:
1

How the proposed change relates to the core strategy
(unless it is the core strategy development plan
document).
4

4

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By
2

How it related to the Community Strategy.

3

Whether it would be in general conformity with the
Regional Spatial Strategy and be consistent with
national planning policy.

4

Whether it was consistent with any other development
plan document.

5

Whether it was consistent with other relevant plans
and strategies which would affect the delivery of the
policies in the plan, e.g. local transport plans.

6

Whether it had any environmental, economic or social
implications that had not already been covered in the
sustainability appraisal.

7

Whether the proposed change required the
preparation of a revised sustainability appraisal; if so
whether this had been done or, if not, how it was to
be done.

8

What further consultation had been undertaken by the
local planning authority in accordance with the
Statement of Community Involvement.

Failure to submit a ‘sound’ document could result in either a
binding Inspector’s Report with fundamental changes, or a
Direction that the authority prepares, at its own expense, another
document for submission.
The proposed timetable for Breckland’s LDF provided for:
§

The adoption of the Core Strategy and Development
Control Policies document by early 2009.

§

The adoption Site Specifics document by end of 2010.

§

The adoption of a Thetford Area Action Plan by end of
2010.

A copy of the revised timetable as tabled at the meeting is
appended to these minutes.
A member asked whether there would be a policy gap between
the expiration of the existing Local Plan in September this year
and the adoption of the LDF. In reply, the Environmental
Planning Manager explained that there was a mechanism in place
to extend the use of planning policies for Development Control
decisions. The Government was also encouraging the use of
national planning guidance. Guidance was still being obtained on
what was needed in this regard and a further report would be
brought to the Panel at a future date. It was stressed, however,
that there would not be a ‘policy gap’ and that there would be a
policy framework to enable planning applications to be
5

5

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

determined. This would be achieved through the use of existing
Local Plan policies that were still relevant combined with national
planning guidance where this superseded existing policies.
The Environmental Planning Manager added that many authorities
were in the same position as Breckland, some of whom had much
older Local Plans than Breckland’s. She also explained that while
it would be possible to write some interim policies should it be felt
necessary, they would, however, be given no weight by the
Planning Inspectorate.
Another question concerned national policy guidance placing
responsibility on local authorities to determine development on
flood plains. The Environmental Planning Manager replied that
the Council had carried out a flood risk assessment and that this
was in the process of being re-assessed in the light of new
guidance issued last year. However, some issues with flood
plains concerned not so much their being built upon but more in
relation to the fact that flood defences were not put in place in
conjunction with such development. A key issue for authorities,
therefore, was how to put in and manage appropriate protection
measures. The view had also been taken not to permit
developments in core river valleys.
The Environment Agency had been given a strengthened
consultative role and a local authority would have to give very
good reasons should it want to grant permission for development
on a flood plain against the advice of the Environment Agency.
It was suggested it would be helpful for all members to have a
copy plan of flood plains in their areas which could be used for
reference purposes in their constituency roles. The Environmental
Planning Manager agreed this was something that could be
provided once the latest information was to hand.
A member drew attention to the issue of Thetford Growth Point
Status and asked about the relationship between the various
working and consultative groups and this Panel.
The Environmental Planning Manager explained that she was
involved with all the groups to provide continuity with the LDF and
the wider planning policy team to ensure emerging policies were
complementary. The role of the Thetford Growth Point Status
groups included wider funding issues.
The importance of close working between all the relevant
agencies was endorsed by the Executive Member for Housing and
Planning.
With regard to Local Service Centres, the Chairman highlighted
the status of Carbrooke, which he felt was as large, if not larger,
than some of the other villages identified for Local Service Centre
classification. It was explained that the villages mentioned in the
report were examples only at this stage and that more work was
being done in this area. A report would be made to the Panel in
due course.
6

6

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

So far as public consultation on progress of the LDF was
concerned, it was confirmed that more and better use of
communications media, including Breckland Voice and the use of
newsletters, was being planned to keep members and the public
informed of issues and progress with the LDF.
The Executive Member added that the issue of resources was
also being addressed and other avenues of assistance being
utilised wherever possible, including closer working with the
County Council.
In response to a question about how other neighbouring
authorities’ LDF programmes affected Breckland, it was explained
that two-way consultation would take place to ensure each was
aware of the other’s policies and programme etc.
In concluding the item, the Chairman thanked the officers for their
attendance and it was
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
44/07 NORFOLK MINERALS AND WASTE DEVELOPMENT
FRAMEWORK - DRAFT CORE STRATEGY AND POLICIES ISSUES AND OPTIONS MAY 2007 (AGENDA ITEM 7)
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report, which
summarised details of the content of the recent draft Norfolk
Minerals and Waste Development Framework (NMWDF) prepared
by the County Council and the subject of consultation. As the
Local Planning Authority, it was important that Breckland Council
was aware of the County’s plans for minerals and waste and how
this affected Breckland’s LDF Strategy, policies and sites.
The NMWDF was due to be adopted by April 2009. The NMWDF
had two functions: (1) to plan for how much waste was produced
in the County and how it was dealt with, and (2) how much mineral
extraction was needed to meet the scale of proposed growth (both
in terms of population growth and new homes and infrastructure).
Like the Breckland LDF, the County NMWDF would include a
separate Site Specifics document outlining the proposed sites for
mineral extraction and waste processing and a draft of this
document was due in spring 2008.
Key issues highlighted in the NMWDF were:
§
§
§
§
§
§

Ensuring sufficient and adequate provision of minerals and
waste
Reduce the transport impact of minerals and waste
Protect the environment
Reduce climate gases arising from minerals and waste
developments
Promote employment in minerals and waste
Reduce health impacts from minerals and waste
7

7

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

Strategy options were:
§

Focus minerals and waste development to regional centres
(Norwich, King’s Lynn, Great Yarmouth and Thetford)

§

A more decentralised option where other towns in Norfolk
would accommodate waste facilities and mineral supply
depots

§

A localised option, where villages would also form part of
the hierarchy and could accommodate local facilities for
waste and minerals

So far as minerals were concerned, the supply in Norfolk was
varied. National and regional policy expected local authorities to
maximise the use of recycled aggregates in building products.
The County Council’s preferred way forward for minerals included:
-

Ensure the County land bank for minerals was above the
national requirement
Require greater use of recycled aggregates in
developments
To ensure minerals are extracted place no restriction on
the size of mineral development approval

In addressing waste, the NMWDF proposed to:
-

Require developer contributions from waste proposals
towards local waste minimisation schemes
Encourage waste recovery methods dependent on their
carbon footprint
Encourage energy from waste (anaerobic digestion, landfill
gas, thermal treatment)
Only allow for new landfill where capacity fell below a
certain threshold

So far as transport issues were concerned, the NMWDF proposed
to reduce demand for travel by
-

Allocating minerals and waste sites close to the markets
they would primarily serve
Giving priority to sites that had the most potential to enable
the use of rail and water-borne freight
Avoiding minerals and waste developments where road
safety and road width (less than 6.1m) were known issues
and giving priority to sites that accessed directly on to the
designated HGV route hierarchy

With regard to the environment, the County Council was proposing
that the balance between environmental protection and the need
for mineral and waste development in Norfolk could be achieved
as follows:
o
o

Avoid SSSIs unless there was overriding public interest
Avoid regional and local sites of nature
conservation/geological value unless the benefits of
8

8

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

o
o
o
o

development clearly outweighed the impact
Do not permit development that would lead to loss of
Biodiversity Action Plan habitat or species
Development would not be permitted in core river valleys
(not defined)
Development would not be permitted on Grade 1, 2 and 3a
agricultural land
Restoration of sites would give priority to biodiversity and
landscape enhancement and the creation of ecological
networks

An analysis and suggested response to the draft NMWDF was
given in Section 6 of the officer’s report. In summary, the views
were as follows:
Minerals
a) To support the County Council’s option for a more
decentralised approach to mineral development, having
particular regard to the proposed scale of growth in
Breckland, with particular reference to Thetford,
Attleborough and Dereham.
b) Given the finite amount of developable land available for
Thetford, primary mineral extraction close to Thetford
would potentially limit the expansion of the town and
undermine the Growth Point Status and objective to
accelerate housing growth at a sustainable location. The
NMWDF needed to recognise this issue.
c) The vernacular in Breckland was sustained by many local
minerals, including flint, chalk and carrstone, some of
which were still extracted in Breckland and it was important
that future supplies of these materials were recognised and
protected in the NMWDF.
Waste
a) Noting the need for further capacity and solutions for
Thetford and for the Dereham area. On this basis,
Breckland would support the County Council’s option of a
more decentralised approach to waste developments.
b) Support the options for the proposed waste hierarchy,
although more consideration needs to be given to the
environmental impact around the thermal treatment of
waste. Proposals to reduce landfill and the transportation
of waste out of the County should be supported provided
there is no net increase in the carbon footprint.
c) The NMWLDF needed to reflect the role of rural areas as
part of the strategy for minerals and waste. In Breckland,
parts of isolated former airfields have accommodated
minerals developments (aggregate recycling) and waste
transfer and sorting operations. The relative remoteness
of these sites avoided direct conflict with local
9

9

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

communities, although the access to these sites required
careful consideration. Additionally, the NMWDF should
give greater support to the potential of suitably located
agricultural buildings for waste and minerals purposes.
Environment
a) The strong emphasis on environmental protection is
supported given the significant number of SSSI and local
wildlife sites in Breckland. The presence of a large number
of international nature conservation sites in Breckland
needed to be noted in the NMWDF and addressed through
Appropriate Assessment. With regard to river valleys and
bearing in mind that a number in Breckland had already
been exploited for minerals development, Breckland
should strongly support that all river valleys in Breckland
are identified as core river valleys and given appropriate
protection. This would include the Wensum, Wissey, Nar,
Yare, Thet and Little Ouse valleys.
b) It was noted that the document did not address the issue of
nuclear waste. The Panel noted the officers’ comments
and agreed that the County Council should be asked if it
was intended to address the matter in the NMWDF.
RESOLVED that the report be noted and the analysis as set
out in section 6 of the report form the basis of the Council’s
response to the draft Norfolk Minerals and Waste Local
Development Framework Issues and Options document.
45/07 POSTAL ADDRESSES AT CARBROOKE/WATTON (AGENDA
ITEM 8)
The Scrutiny Officer reported the reply received from Royal Mail
on the question raised at the last meeting. The Chairman’s
comments noted above (minute 39/07) clarifying the issue were
noted.
The Chairman reiterated that he was continuing to press the point
with Royal Mail that parish names should be included in postal
addresses.
The point was made that there was nothing to stop people adding
the parish name into their postal address if this was not already
the case.
The position was noted.
46/07 WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING SCHEDULE (AGENDA
ITEM 9)
Items currently listed in the Panel’s programme were confirmed
as:
o
o

LDF and associated issues (ongoing)
New Planning Regulations – when developed
10

10

Policy Development and Review Panel 1
24 July 2007
Action By

o

Regional Framework – interrelation with LDF and
compatibility of policies

The following additional matters were put forward for inclusion in
the programme:
§

Update on progress of Thetford Growth Point project in
relation to development of the LDF. Representatives of
Thetford Town Council and Norfolk County Council (as
members of Moving Thetford Forward and associated
Member Groups) to be invited to attend for discussions.

§

Snetterton Electricity Supply project (part of REV project) –
Update on progress requested.

Referring back to agenda item 7 and the consultation on options
for waste within the NMWDF document, a member drew attention
to the fact that only single loads were being accepted at the
existing recycling centre in Thetford, which she felt was resulting
in increases in fly tipping in and around the town. She felt this was
something that needed to be reviewed.
Another member suggested that the interim solution used in
Dereham, where lorries were parked on one day a week to take
recycling waste, might be taken up elsewhere.
The Environmental Planning Manager felt it would be necessary to
agree an additional meeting date towards the end of August to
meet the existing LDF timetable.
RESOLVED that
(1)

an additional meeting date be agreed for 10.00am
Thursday, 30 August 2007 (venue to be arranged);

(2)

the item on Thetford Growth Point Status be
incorporated into the work programme;

(3)

an update on the Snetterton electricity supply issue be
provided to this or other Panel as may be appropriate.

47/07 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 10)
As agreed under the foregoing item, the next meeting of the Panel
would take place on Thursday, 30 August 2007 at 10.00am.

The meeting closed at 11.25 am

CHAIRMAN

11

11

Agenda Item 7

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL 1 – 30 AUGUST 2007
REPORT OF THE OPERATIONS MANAGER - ENVIRONMENT
(Author: David Spencer, Principal Planning Policy Officer)
NORFOLK COUNTY COUNCIL: A47 to A1067 LINK IMPROVEMENT
CONSULTATION
Summary: This report informs Members of the content of a Public Consultation on route
options for an improved link between the A47 and A1067. The options indicate improving
links between Hockering at the A47 and Lenwade at the A1067. The southern half of any
proposed link would be in Breckland. The document that is currently subject to consultation
is
enclosed.
The
information
can
also
be
accessed
online
at
http://www.norfolk.gov.uk/A47toA1067link
1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Norfolk County Council as Highways Authority is currently consulting on options to
improve road links between the A47 at Hockering through to the A1067 Fakenham to
Norwich road at Lenwade. The proposal is not described as being part of the Norwich
Northern Distributor Road (NNDR) but has its origins in evidence arising from that
project that there is a significant local problem of traffic travelling between the A47
and A1067. The issue directly affects Breckland communities at Hockering, Lyng and
outlying hamlets. The County Council has put forward five options to enhance links
and is seeking comment by 7th September.

2.

KEY DECISION

2.1

This is not a key decision.

3.

EQUALITIES, HUMAN RIGHTS AND CRIME & DISORDER

3.1

This report raises no issues relating to Equalities, Human Rights and Crime and
Disorder.

4.

COUNCIL PRIORITIES

4.1

The matters raised in this report fall within the following Council priority:
• A well planned place to live which encourages vibrant communities

5.

SUMMARY OF THE CONSULTATION

5.1

The consultation proposes five road options and these are set out in more detail in
the consultation leaflet set out at Appendix A. Options 1, 2 and 3 all start at the
Wood Lane / Berry’s Lane junction east of Hockering on the A47 and broadly follow
the existing link from Wood Lane to Weston Hall Road via Weston Green Road.
Options 1 and 2 would involve re-aligning the route at various points, whereas option
3 is the minimum option and involves on-line improvements along the existing road
network.

5.2

Option 4 would involve a new junction immediately east of Hockering and would
involve diverting link traffic along Heath Road in Hockering. Option 5 would involve
utilising the existing grade separated junction for North Tuddenham and using the
existing Lyng Road and Blind Line to link up with Weston Hall Road.

12

6.

ANALYSIS OF THE OPTIONS

6.1

This section of the Report is structured around the consultation material
provided by Norfolk County Council.

6.2

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Need
The current daily flows of traffic between the A47 and A1067 would support
the need to improve the links between these two key strategic roads. There is
a widespread perception that this proposal is intended to provide the final
element of the original NNDR route and the additional 3,000 vehicles to use
the link assuming the NNDR is built would support this perception. It is also
considered that an opportunity has been missed to work with the Highways
Agency to provide an enhanced junction at the Wood Lane/Berry’s Lane
interchange. Such a junction would provide the basis of a A47/A1067 link road
and would have presented an option to resolve the Mattishall Road Junction
safety situation. Breckland Council would welcome clarification of what the
standard the junction at Wood Lane onto the A47 would entail and whether
this cost has been reflected into options presented?
Preferred Option
Option 2 presents the best value for money whilst achieving the objective of
delivering a short distance link between the A47 and A1067 that would avoid
Hockering and remove existing local industrial traffic from residential areas.
Support of this option would include retention of the group of veteran oak trees
at the junction of Weston Green Lane and Sandy Lane.
Unacceptable Options
Option 4 presents the most unacceptable option and should be immediately
discounted. Whilst it is the second cheapest option it is the second longest
route from the A47 to A1067 for those travelling Fakenham to Norwich and
vice versa. Critically it will unacceptably and directly affect communities in
Breckland, notably the Heath Road part of Hockering. Additionally, the route
cuts across a valley landscape (remnant of medieval deer park) to the east of
Hockering and passes within 200m of Hockering Primary School. Additionally
the route would not remove local industrial traffic from the Wood Lane area.
The very limited benefits of the route in terms of its relatively low cost do not
outweigh the considerable environmental harm to Breckland residents, the
local landscape impact and the cost of additional traffic management to limit
traffic from still using Wood Lane and Hockering.
Option 5 should also be immediately discounted due to its cost, length, limited
attractiveness to users and the considerable environmental impact from
constructing a lengthy option. Using option 5 heading east to west adds an
additional 5km (3miles) to the journey and would still require the County
Council to manage local traffic around Wood Lane and Hockering. Option 5
would radically alter the rural and quiet character in this part of Breckland.
Associated Issues
The primary objective of the proposed improvements should be to reduce the
effects of through traffic on local communities. Improving road safety and
junctions, reducing effects on private properties, protecting the environment
and value for money are all important factors to take into account. On this
basis Option 2 would meet these priorities. However, the consultation
recognises that the proposed link will attract significant additional traffic if the
NNDR is built. Breckland Council seeks clarification on the impact of the

13

NNDR on this proposal in terms of the consequences for the local road
network if the NNDR is built but these improvements are not implemented.
This would help assess whether the primary objective of reducing through
traffic on local communities is exacerbated as part of the wider NNDR
scenario.
7.

OPTIONS AVAILABLE

7.1

Respond to Norfolk County Council’s consultation on the proposed options for the
A47 to A1067 link improvements using the analysis in Section 6 of the Report subject
to any additional comments from the Panel.

7.2

Do not respond to Norfolk County Council’s consultation.

8.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

8.1

To enable Breckland Council’s views as the Local Planning Authority to inform the
preparation of a preferred route for A47 and A1067 Link Road.
RECOMMENDATION TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 1

8.2

Members views are requested and that subject to any amendments that the analysis
in section 6 of this report form the basis of Breckland Council’s response to Norfolk
County Council’s improved link between A47 and A1067 consultation document.

This report has taken account of the need for compliance with the Council’s Equal
Opportunities Policy and the requirements of Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act
1998 and the Human Rights Act 1998. This report raises no matters to which
attention specifically needs to be drawn under the legislation.

14

